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Question 1 While NYS OASAS is providing the funding, the program will be 

operating within NYC. Will the contract be with NYS OASAS or with NYC 
DHMH? 

 
ANSWER: Funding for services in NYC will be provided on a direct contract 

with NYS OASAS. 
 
Question 2 Our 822 program currently receives a substantial number of clients by 

referral from NYS Division of Parole. Upon startup of these new 
programs resulting from Rockefeller Drug Law sentencing reforms, will 
these referrals now be redirected from the existing 822 programs to 
these new programs? 

 
ANSWER: Awards made under this RFP are not for the development of new 

programs pre se but for the expansion of existing programs. 
Applicants are to identify the Part 822 program PRU that funding is 
to be added to for the increased services. We anticipate that 
current referral processes and patterns will continue, with an 
increase in the number of referrals from some sources (i.e. Drug 
Courts). There is no requirement that referrals will be re-directed to 
the programs funded under this procurement. 

 
Question 3 Are clients who are referred to a participating provider mandated to 

attend provider services? 
 
ANSWER: As with all criminal justice referrals, the Court, probation, or parole 

may "mandate" an individual to attend a program. If the individual 
does not attend the program, the criminal justice entity may 
sanction the individual. If the criminal justice agency 
refers/mandates the individual to an inappropriate level of care (as 
determined by the provider), the provider should follow the 
processes outlined in OASAS LSB 2008-02. 

 
Question 4 Are clients mandated to attend program as per court orders? 
 
ANSWER: See answer #3. 
 
Question 5 As it relates to Question 9a and the questions that follow, when it states 

that you may “attach one additional 8 ½ X 11 sheet, if needed, “is that in 



addition to the additional space provided on the following page for that 
response? 

 
ANSWER: Yes. 
 
Question 6 Page 10, # 2, should we be including letters of support from the drug 

court and/or other criminal justice agencies and if so, how/where should 
theses be included? 

 
ANSWER: These may be attached to the application as an appendix. 
 
Question 7 Under the “Eligibility Requirements” the current RFP states, “OASAS… 

is seeking funding proposals from voluntary agencies that operate an 
Eligible OASAS-Certified Part 822 Program of Programs in the City of 
New York.” However, under “Definitions” in the RFP, “Eligible OASAS-
Certified Part 822 Programs” is defined as “any voluntary agency located 
in any of the identified boroughs of the City of New York, that has a valid 
two or three year, Part 822 operating certificate issued by the OASAS 
Commissioner.” According to this definition this organization is eligible to 
apply – they are located in the boroughs, and they do have a valid 
license (though the license is not in NYC). Please clarify their eligibility 
for this program. 

 
ANSWER: If the Agency has current Part 822 locations operating in good 

standing within the targeted boroughs, the agency is eligible. If the 
agency does not have such programs currently operating within 
the boroughs, they would not be eligible as the RFP does not allow 
for new additional sites. 

 
Question 8 Who will be responsible for client recruitment and/or referrals? 
 
ANSWER: It is anticipated that current practices on client recruitment and 

referrals will continue. The agencies awarded contracts under this 
procurement will be able to handle some of the additional demand 
from the variety of referral sources. 

 
Question 9 Please describe more fully the anticipated additional reporting 

requirements as best you understand them at the present time? 
 
ANSWER: At the present time, OASAS is requiring providers to include some 

additional information on the CDS reporting system. This 
information is the individual's NYSID # (provided by the criminal 
justice agency referring or responsible for the individual) and 
information about the presence of a valid Criminal Justice Consent 
form. 

 



Question 10 Are bidders limited to working with the courts within the borough where 
they provide treatment? 

 
ANSWER: OASAS anticipates that providers will work within the boroughs 

that they have programs with operating certificates. No new 
locations are planned as part of this RFP. 

 
Question 11 Are bidders limited to work within their borough when providing 

treatment? 
 
ANSWER: See answer #10. 
 
Question 12 How are we going to assess how many parolees are admitted?  
 
ANSWER: Providers will determine source of referral (Parole, Drug Court, etc.) 

in the same manner as is currently practiced. Referral contact, 
paperwork and individual assessments will inform the provider as 
to how to indicate the individual's criminal justice status. 

 
Question 13 Does this population have a breakdown by gender? Is this needed? 
 
ANSWER: We do not have the population broken down by gender, but 

anticipate that the current demographic patterns that providers 
experience will continue. 

 
Question 14 If a provider has one licensed Part 819 Residential Treatment Program, 

does that disqualify the agency? 
 
ANSWER: The provider must have a Part 822 program operating in good 

standing in order to qualify. Agencies that do not currently operate 
a Part 822 in good standing are not eligible to apply. If a provider 
has other certified programs in addition to a certified Part 822 
program, the agency is eligible to apply if the other certified 
programs are also in good standing. See Part III Definitions on page 
three for an explanation of “good standing.” 

 
Question 15 If a new PRU has a one year license, is the agency still eligible? 
 
ANSWER: A new provider that otherwise qualifies under the RFP, would not 

be awarded funding until a recertification review has been 
completed and program was found to be in partial or better 
compliance. 

 
Question 16 On page 11, #6, Access to Medication Assisted Treatment? What does 

that mean? Methadone or medication for a co-occurring disorder? 
 



ANSWER: This section of the procurement is meant to address access to 
Addiction Medications (methadone, buprenorphine, etc.). 

 
Question 17 Do all criminal justice clients have a NYSID #? 
 
ANSWER: All individuals who have had their finger prints recorded in New 

York have a NYSID #. Some misdemeanants may not have had their 
fingerprints recorded. If they do not have a NYSID #, the provider 
does not have to submit a number. 

 
Question 18 If the NYSID number does not identify these specific clients. How do we 

track these clients? How do we differentiate those we are contracted to 
serve? 

 
ANSWER: It is anticipated that all individuals who are covered by the new 

Drug Law Reform will have a NYSID #. Providers are only 
responsible to include the NYSID #, the presence of the Criminal 
Justice consent form, and the individual's criminal justice status in 
their CDS data submission. 

 
Question 19 Can the provider get the NYSID # from a source other than parole? 
 
ANSWER: The NYSID # should be available from Parole, Probation, or the 

Drug Court. In some very limited cases, the individual may not have 
a NYSID # at the time of referral. OASAS will be reviewing this to 
determine how to handle such individuals. 

 
Question 20 Existing 822s within the City of NY have certain requirements. This is a 

separate contract from the city? 
 
ANSWER: See answer to question #1. 
 
Question 21 Is this an independent contract? 
 
ANSWER: Funding provided under this RFP will be added the existing 

contract of a provider, if the provider currently receives State aid 
from OASAS on a direct contract. If the provider is funded through 
the City of New York, a new direct contract will be established for 
this funding between OASAS and the provider. 

 
Question 22 What is the January 1st start up? 
 
ANSWER: It is expected that program expansion funded under this RFP will 

be operational on or about January 1, 2010. 
 
Question 23 Can we expand or enhance services with these dollars? 



 
ANSWER: Funding provided through this RFP is specifically for the expansion 

of existing Part 822 services. If the provider can provide 
enhancements within the approved budget, this is permissible but 
no additional funding will be given for enhancements. 

 
Question 24 Should the new form replace the old Crisis Discharge Form? 
 
ANSWER: The new consent form does not replace any forms other than the 

consent between the CJ referring agency and the provider. 
 
Question 25 How do you find the RFP on the website? 
 
ANSWER: The RFP information link can be found on the OASAS home page 

under the news and notes section. 
 
Question 26 How will the special needs of the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and 

Transgender be addressed? 
 
ANSWER: It is anticipated that the needs of special populations will be met in 

the same fashion that they are currently met. 
 
Question 27 Will agencies that are housed outside of NYC with certified program 

within the borough be eligible? 
 
ANSWER: Agencies that have existing Part 822 programs in good standing 

located within the borough are eligible. 
 
Question 28 Are there any specific format requirements when completing the forms – 

specific font, font size, line spacing or margin requirements? 
 
ANSWER: There are no specific requirements, however we anticipate that 

applicants will follow common practices related to font type, size 
and spacing. 

 
Question 29 Do funded programs have an enrollment goal? 
 
ANSWER: Providers who are funded will be expected to meet utilization 

standards for the expansion. The size of the expansion will be 
determined by the funding. 

 
Question 30 Can we use a word format in the Narrative section (fillable PDF)? 
 
ANSWER: Yes 
 



Question 31 How is OASAS going to address the 20% increase in outpatient and 
80% increase in residential treatment services? 

 
ANSWER: Based on DCJS data, OASAS anticipates that the increase in 

outpatient demand will be approximately 1%. The outpatient RFP 
and Planning supplements is intended to address this. OASAS 
anticipates an increased demand of 600-700 residential beds, and is 
engaged in developing those beds. That process will include an 
RFP to be released in the future. 

 
Question 32 Does it include CASAT eligible inmates? 
 
ANSWER: As is the current practice, CASAT eligible inmates may be referred 

to Substance Abuse Treatment as part of their conditions of parole. 
 
Question 33 Was there any consideration of people on probation? Or the re-

sentencing people? 
 
ANSWER: Probation numbers are included. The re-sentencing population was 

not included, as this was anticipated to be a one-time group that 
could be absorbed into the existing treatment system 

 
Question 34 Parole’s dismantling their programs, how does this impact DLR? 
 
ANSWER: We anticipate that there may be some increased demand based on 

Division of Parole terminating certain contracts due to budget 
constraints. 

 
Question 35 Why are the Brooklyn numbers so low? 
 
ANSWER: Some counties, like Brooklyn/Kings, have extensively used Drug 

Court, DTAP or other programs to divert many individuals. It is 
anticipated that they will have fewer new diversions compared to 
counties where, historically, a smaller percentage of individuals 
were diverted. 

 
Question 36 New consent forms. Are you saying that we should use the new forms 

for all our criminal justice patients? 
 
ANSWER: Yes 
 
Question 37 Do we have to treatment them separately? 
 
ANSWER: Depending on the number of expansion slots, providers will 

determine whether there will be special groups. Providers may 



incorporate new admissions into current tracks for their criminal 
justice population. 

 
Question 38 Will we have an enrollment goal? Who would be responsible? 
 
ANSWER: See answer #29. 
 
Question 39 How will we treat these folks? Independently or within the existing 

program (PRU)? 
 
ANSWER: See answer #37. 
 
Question 40 Page 5, Section 5, Page 36, #11, expected start date – asked to submit 

an annual budget. Time frames are out of whack. Asking for startup 
January 1st, and a 6-month startup – contradiction. 

 
ANSWER: It is expected that a provider selected for an award will be able to 

being services on or about January 1, 2010. Providers are to submit 
a full annual budget in Appendix E which will be pro-rated for six 
months of operations, specifically January 1 to June 30, 2010. All 
NYC contracts are issued on a July to June fiscal cycle. 

 
Question 41 Is it possible to get the narrative sections in a word document? 
 
ANSWER: The form is in a fillable PDF format. Applicants can copy and paste 

narratives written in Word (or other programs) into the PDF form. 
 
Question 42 New Forms – PAS, Consent, Crisis, Discharge Forms – Where are the 

instructions? 
 
ANSWER: The instructions will be posted in the forms section of the OASAS 

website. 
 
Question 43 Is OASAS going to select more than one agency? 
 
ANSWER: OASAS will be selecting agencies to ensure that each of the four 

eligible boroughs have enough service expansion to meet the 
expected increase in demand. 

 
Question 44 Is there a cap on the number of patients we are expected to see? 
 
ANSWER: There is no cap. 
 
Question 45 We were reviewed by the Bureau of Quality Analysis and Enforcement in 

June and are in the process of working on specific violations via our 
corrective action plan. In spite of this, are we qualified to submit a 



proposal? Additionally, we have a valid three-year license and we were 
not flagged in our latest IPMES. 

 
ANSWER: If the agency's programs meet the "good standing" definitions as 

outlined in the RFP on Page 3, the agency is eligible to apply. 
 
Question 46 If a contract will be with NYC DHMH, there is a concern about NYC 

clawback provisions as applied to contractual targets for Units of 
Service. The proposal touches upon costs per person (pg. 12) but does 
not mention any criteria about Gross Cost per Unit of Service, Net Cost 
per Unit of Service or contractual targets for Units of Service per clinical 
FTE. Please provide specific comment and guidance on these three 
metrics? 

 
ANSWER: Funding for awards under the RFP will be made on direct contracts 

with NYS OASAS. No contractual targets for Units of Services will 
be established. Awards will be made in each of the four identified 
boroughs to meet the anticipated level of diversions. 

 
Question 47 Experience suggests that potential clients may be eligible for Medicaid. 

Our program would assist clients to (re)establish eligibility. What 
percentage of likely clients does OASAS expect to participate in the 
program where those clients were or are Medicaid eligible – so that we 
can more accurately forecast third party revenue? 

 
ANSWER: OASAS estimates the Medicaid eligibility will be the same as the 

current population 
 
Question 48 Is a provider expected to apply a sliding fee scale for client fees if a 

client has neither Medicaid eligibility nor any applicable third party 
insurance? If so, what percentage of likely clients does OASAS expect to 
participate in the program who must pay a client fee – so that we can 
more accurately forecast third party revenue? 

 
ANSWER: OASAS estimates that the same reimbursement levels will exist for 

the additional population. Agencies should use current data to 
determine revenue projections. 

 
Question 49 In the event that a client is mandated to attend specific services that 

occur twice on the same day, what standard shall be applied in counting 
Units of Services for two visits on the same day? 

 
ANSWER: Programs will follow active billing guidelines for all services, 

including the implementation of APG’s, when that occurs. 
 



Question 50 If awarded a contract, shall the provider report aggregated financial 
results on the CFR for the current 822 program and this new program, or 
will each program be reported in its own column on the CFR? 

 
ANSWER: Funding awarded under this RFP will be added to the existing part 

822 program identified in Appendix E Part 1 item 4 on page 30 and 
Appendix E Part 2 item 3 on page 44. No new programs will be 
established under this RFP. Refer to Instructions for Completing 
Appendix E, pages 45-47. 

 
Question 51 How specifically do you come up with the annual net deficit cost referred 

to on page 12? 
 
ANSWER: The cost bands were based on a per visit cost between $68 and 

$119, averaging three visits per week, 52 weeks per year. 
 
Question 52 Attachment 1 anticipates two assessments for each diversion. Should 

we assume that we will be doing two assessments for each diversion? If 
so, how is the second assessment calculated into the budget, since the 
budget generates the cost of one diverted individual with its associated 
assessment? 

 
ANSWER: It is expected that two assessments will be completed for each 

diversion. All assessment costs should be included in the 
submitted budget. 

 
Question 53 What provision will be made for start-up costs, including hiring, training 

staff, developing protocols, setting up and/or modifying data reporting 
systems, setting up financial systems, recruiting clients, etc? 

 
ANSWER: It is not expected that there will be significant start-up costs 

associated with these awards since this is an expansion of existing 
services, not the development of new programs or services. 
However, if minor start-up funding is necessary, discussion of 
these costs will occur after awards are made and will take place 
between the provider and the appropriate Field Office. 

 
Question 54 Is any budget detail required beyond the single page budget summary in 

Appendix E, part 2? Is any narrative justification required? If so, at what 
level of detail? 

 
ANSWER: No. Part 2 of Appendix E on page 44 is the only budget detail 

required. 
 
Question 55 Are bidders to provide a budget and proposal narrative that describes 

and encompasses an entire existing treatment program, or just the 



services and costs associated with those diverted as a result of the 
Rockefeller Drug Law sentencing reforms? In other words, are bidder’s 
to present just the net-deficit portion of the program, or the entire PRU? 

 
ANSWER: The description and budget required in Appendix E applies only to 

the expanded services to be developed to meet the needs detailed 
in the RFP. The submitted budget should not be for the entire PRU. 

 
Question 56 On Appendix E, question #8, are bidders to provide service numbers 

association with the net-deficit portion of the program, or the entire 
PRU? 

 
ANSWER: The proposed annual number of people receiving Part 822 service 

refers to the number of new diversions the applicant is interested in 
serving and for which expansion funding is requested. 

 
Question 57 Is the $614,000 the cap per award? Or is that the total sum to be 

awarded to NYC providers? 
 
ANSWER: The 2009-10 State Budget for OASAS includes up to $615,000 in 

State aid funding for awards statewide. However, the budget 
submitted by the applicant should reflect the full annual costs for 
the expansion of services related to the number of new diversions 
the applicant is seeking to treat. 

 
Question 58 Is it $614,000 total per grant?  
 
ANSWER: See answer to question #57. 
 
Question 59 Is the budget gross expenses or net expenses? 
 
ANSWER: The submitted budget should reflect the gross expenses, 

anticipated revenues and any net operating deficit, as described in 
Appendix E, Part 2 on page 44. Please refer to page 46-47, 
Instructions for Completing Appendix E Part 2 – Budget Proposal. 

 
Question 60 Does that refer to after third party revenue is taken out? 
 
ANSWER: Please refer to Instructions for Completing Appendix E Part 2 – 

Budget Proposal on pages 46 and 47. 
 
Question 61 If expenses before revenue is applied, what are these? 
 
ANSWER: Please refer to Instructions for Completing Appendix E Part 2 – 

Budget Proposal on pages 46 and 47. 
 



Question 62 Start up costs (expansion/renovation) is this a separate discussion? 
 
ANSWER: See answer to question #53 and #23 
 
Question 63 Please describe additional reporting? 
 
ANSWER: There are no additional financial reporting requirements. Programs 

will be responsible for reporting the NYSID # and the presence of 
an active Criminal Justice consent form. 

 
Question 64 What is the exact number of award amounts? 
 
ANSWER: The number of awards will depend on the amount requested as well 

as the number of diversions applicants expect to be able to serve 
until the anticipated new diversions for the borough is met. 

 
Question 65 Is it gross expenses or net expenses? 
 
ANSWER: See answer to question #59. 
 
Question 66 What criterion is applied to budgeting, funding, start date in reference to 

start up costs? 
 
ANSWER: See answer to question #53 
 
Question 67 Page 37, refers to additional space/capital cost? 
 
ANSWER: The applicant should indicate if, in order to provide these services, 

additional physical space will be necessary. Appendix E, Part 1, 
page 37, item 12 provides an explanation of the information that the 
applicant must include if additional physical space is required. 
However, capital funding is not part of this RFP. 

 
Question 68 How specifically do you come up with the annual net deficit cost referred 

to on page 12? 
 
ANSWER: See answer to question #51 


